Installation and Configuration Guide for "Visit by GES" Check-In Software

Table of Contents

1. INTRODUCTION	<u> 3</u>
1.1 PURPOSE OF THE DOCUMENT:	3
1.2 IMPORTANCE OF CORRECT CONFIGURATION	3
1.3 OVERVIEW OF THE 'VISIT BY GES' CHECK-IN SOFTWARE	4
2. CHECK-IN SOFTWARE INSTALLATION	<u> 5</u>
2.1 INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS FOR USING CHECK-IN SOFTWARE	
2.1.1 MINIMUM HARDWARE REQUIREMENTS:	
2.1.2 REQUIRED INFORMATION FROM CLIENT MANAGER (YOUR POC)	5
2.2 INSTALLATION STEPS	<u> 6</u>
SETTING UP CHECK-IN LOADER IMAGE:	
SETTING UP CHECK-IN IMAGE:	
2.2.1 NEW INSTALLATION	
2.2.2 UPDATE EXISTING INSTALLATION	18
2.2.3 SOFTWARE ACTIVATION	21
2.3 HARDWARE COMPATIBILITY	<u>25</u>
3. HARDWARE CONFIGURATION	<u>26</u>
3.2 CONFIGURING SCANNERS FOR CHECK-IN	
3.3 CONFIGURING NETWORK FOR CHECK-IN TERMINAL	47
4.CHECK-IN LITE INSTALLATION	<u>49</u>
4.1 INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS FOR USING CHECK-IN LITE SOFTWARE	49
4.1.1 MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:	
4.1.2 REQUIRED INFORMATION FROM CLIENT MANAGER (YOUR POC)	50
4.2 INSTALLATION STEPS	<u>50</u>



4.2.1 LAUNCHING CHECK-IN LITE	51
4.3 HARDWARE COMPATIBILITY	<u>55</u>
4.4. ZEBRA TC26 DATAWEDGE SCANNER CONFIGURATION	<u>55</u>
5.EVENT DAY SETUP	<u>57</u>
6.TROUBLESHOOTING	<u>58</u>
7.CONCLUSION	60

Installation and Configuration Guide for "Visit by GES" Check-In Software

1. Introduction

1.1 Purpose of the document:

- The purpose of this document is to provide clear guidelines, instructions, and procedures for carrying out specific tasks or operations while using Visit by GES Check-In software.

1.2 Importance of correct configuration

- **Optimal Performance**: Proper configuration ensures that Visit by GES system, software, or equipment operate at their peak performance levels.
- **Functionality**: Correct configuration enables all features and functionalities of Visit by GES system or software to work as intended.
- **Security**: Configuring Visit by GES system and software correctly is essential for maintaining security.
- **Compatibility**: Configuring Visit by GES system and software correctly ensures compatibility with other components, devices, or applications within an environment.
- **Compliance**: Correct configuration helps ensure compliance with these regulations by implementing necessary controls, policies, and procedures.
- **Reliability**: Properly configured systems are more reliable and less prone to errors, failures, or downtime.
- **Cost-Efficiency**: Incorrect configuration of Visit by GES can lead to inefficiencies, downtime, security breaches, and other costly issues.



1.3 Overview of the 'Visit by GES' Check-In software.

Check-In is Visit's proprietary software, designed with the purpose of streamlining onsite tasks for event organisers, ensuring a smooth and efficient event experience from start to finish. These include registration, access control, badge printing, payments, and more.

Platform Information:

Visit by GES software is built on the Linux platform.



2. Check-IN Software Installation

2.1 Installation requirements for using Check-In software

- Before installing and using Visit Check-In software, ensure that your system meets the following minimum requirements:

2.1.1 Minimum Hardware Requirements:

- **Processor**: Intel Core i5 or equivalent
- **RAM**: 8 GB or higher
- Hard Disk Space: 64 GB available disk space
- Network: Ethernet LAN port or Wi-Fi 802.11a/b/g/n
 - While there are no specific requirements, the system will require more bandwidth when initially loading and during periods of high activity for syncing data. As a minimum recommendation, a bandwidth of 5 Mbps download and 1 Mbps upload should suffice. Visit Check-In may be used offline, but requires Internet connectivity for the initial setup and for synchronising data with the Visit Cloud.
- Free USB ports
 - The number of USB ports will depend on what you're connecting possible devices are: printers, wired scanners, Touchpoint charging docks, external mice, and keyboards. Also the USB sticks if running from the stick rather than installed on the hard drive.

2.1.2 Required information from client manager (Your POC)

- For succesful delivery of the Visit Check-In software for your event, the client manager must provide the following essential information:
- 1. Number of Check-In Stations/Devices required based on venue dimensions.

2. Licence key and password

- You'll need a licence key to activate the software and the password for accesing the Check-In terminal settings (update, terminal settings, network settings, printer settings)
- 3. Power and Network Connectivity Availability at Check-In Locations:
- Ensure that each Check-In station/device has access to reliable power sources to prevent interruptions during operation. Additionally, ensure that Check-In stations are within range of the event venue's network infrastructure to ensure seamless connectivity.



2.2 Installation Steps

- Before starting the proper installation of our software, please ensure the following:

1. Boot from USB and Write to HDD:

- Ensure that your laptop is capable of booting from a USB stick and can write to the local HDD (hard disk drive).
- AHCI (details to be added)

2. USB Stick Requirements:

- Prepare a USB stick with a minimum size of 16GB for the Check-In Loader image.
- Verify that your USB stick is formatted to FAT32. If it's not formatted as FAT32, please format it accordingly.

3. Available USB Port and Admin Permissions:

- Confirm that your laptop has at least one available USB port for connecting external devices.
- Ensure that you have administrative permissions to connect external devices to your laptop.

4. Stable Internet Connection:

- A stable internet connection is required for the installation process. However, if your internet connection is unstable or unavailable, you can alternatively install Check-In using a second USB stick containing a Check-In image.

WARNING:

Exercise caution and ensure that you select the correct disk during the installation process. **Formatting a disk erases all data stored on it.**

TIP:

Keep in mind that administrative permissions (**admin rights**) are required for this operation, and access to USB ports may be restricted based on company security policies.



Setting Up Check-In Loader Image:

- To prepare the Check-In Loader image, follow these steps:
- 1. Access Visit Create:
- Log in to Visit Create using your credentials.

2.Navigate to Visit Check-in Images:

- Go to the "Onsite" section.
- Select "Settings" and then choose "Visit Check-in Images".

3.Select Check-In Loader Image:

- From the drop-down menu, select the Check-In Loader image
- Download the selected Check-In Loader image to your computer.

Q Quick search	Visit Check-in Settings Locations Rule Testing Visit Check-in Images
Organisation	> Instructions
Event) 1. Download a tool to flash USB drives e.g. balenaEtcher
Design	 2. Select an image below and download it 3. Use balenaEtcher or something similar to write your image to USB
Form	4. Done!
Onsite	Checkin Loader 20220714
Settings	Checkin EFI 5.11.16 Checkin 5.11 Checkin EFI 5.10.31
Visit Check-in Terminals	Checkin 5.10
Uisit Check-in Lite Devices	Checkin Loader 20220714 Bootable tool to image Checkin
✓ Content management	
O Cameras	

4. Download Check-In Loader image

- Upon opening the URL, the download will initiate promptly.
- Depending on the size of the file and your internet connection speed, the download may take some time to complete.
- After the download is finished, navigate to the folder on your device where the file was saved.
- Extract the contents of the downloaded file if it is compressed (e.g., in a .zip format). This can typically be done by right-clicking on the file and selecting an option like "Extract" or "Extract Here."

5. Write Image to USB Stick:

- Use a tool such as balenaEtcher or a similar utility to write the Check-In Loader image to a USB stick.
- Connect the USB stick to your computer and open balenaEtcher.



- Select the Check-In Loader image file you downloaded and choose the USB stick as the destination.



- Start the writing process(click on *Flash*) and wait for it to complete.

🝣 balenaEtcher		-		\times
	🜍 balena Etcher		\$	•
checkin-efi-5.4.117.img	Task Image: Flash device Image: Update and manage devices	Solution		
Flash Completed!	Etcher is just one tool in	vour kit		
 Successful target Effective speed: 11.3 MB/s 	We also build tools to deploy, manage, and remotely upda Provision, deploy, manage, update and m	te fleets of small devic	es at an	y scale.
Flash another	Find out more			

6.Completion:

- Once the writing process is finished, safely eject the USB stick from your computer.

Your Check-In Loader image is now prepared and ready to be used for Check-In terminal setup.



Setting Up Check-In Image:

- To prepare the Check-In image, follow these steps:

1.Access Visit Create:

- Log in to Visit Create using your credentials.

2.Navigate to Visit Check-in Images:

- Go to the "Onsite" section.
- Select "Settings" and then choose "Visit Check-in Images".

3.Select Check-In Image:

- From the drop-down menu, select the latest Check-In image
- Download the selected Check-In image to your computer.

Q Quick search	Visit Check-in Settings Locations Rule Testing Visit Check-in Images
Organisation >	Instructions
Event >	1. Download a tool to flash USB drives e.g. balenaEtcher
Design >	 Select an image below and download it Use balenaEtcher or something similar to write your image to USB Done!
Form >	Select image Checkin EFI 5.11.16
Onsite ~	Checkin EFI 5.11.16 Checkin 5.11
Settings	Checkin EFI 5.10.31
Visit Check-in Terminals	Checkin 5.10 Checkin Loader 20220714
Uisit Check-in Lite Devices	Bootable tool to image Checkin
Content management	
Cameras	

4. Download Check-In Image

- Upon opening the URL, the download will initiate promptly.
- Depending on the size of the file and your internet connection speed, the download may take some time to complete.
- After the download is finished, navigate to the folder on your device where the file was saved.

5. Extract the Downloaded File :

- If the downloaded file is in a compressed format (e.g., zip file), right-click on it and select "Extract All" to unzip the file or use a proper software to extract the compressed file. This step is only required for compressed files.

6.Write Image to USB Stick:

- Use a tool such as balenaEtcher or a similar utility to write the Check-In Loader image to a USB stick.
- Connect the USB stick to your computer and open balenaEtcher.



- Select the Check-In Loader image file you downloaded and choose the USB stick as the destination.

📚 balenaEtcher		- 🗆 X
	📦 balena Elcher	¢ 9
+		- +
checkin-e4.117.img	KingstonSB Device	Flash!
Cancel		
6.44 GB		

- Start the writing process(click on *Flash*) and wait for it to complete.

😂 balenaEtcher		-		\times
	脊 balena Etcher		\$?
checkin-efi-5.4.117.img	Task Flash device Update and manage devices	Solution		
Flash Completed! I Successful target Effective speed: 11.3 ME is	Etcher is just one tool in We also build tools to deploy, manage, and remotely updat Provision, deploy, manage, update and m	e fleets of small devic	es at an	y scale.
Flash another	Find out more			
7.Completion:				

- Once the writing process is finished, safely eject the USB stick from your computer.



Your Check-In image is now prepared and ready to be used for Check-In terminal setup.

2.2.1 New installation

- A new installation of the Check-In software involves setting up the software from scratch on a computer or terminal.
- This process ensures that the software is properly installed and configured to facilitate smooth event Check-In operations.

Option 1: Internet connection available

1.Prepare Your Laptop:

- Ensure your laptop is switched off.

2.Insert Check-In Loader USB:

- Insert the USB stick containing the Check-In Loader image into your laptop.

3.Access Boot Menu:

- Start your laptop and access the boot menu. The method to access the boot menu varies depending on your machine. Typically, you need to press F12, F8, F2, or Del key as the computer starts.

4.Select USB Loader Stick:

- From the boot menu, select the USB loader stick as the boot device. This will run the loader software.

5.Run Check-In Image Copy:

- Once the loader software is running, select the option "Check-In image copy". Do not remove the loader USB at this stage.



6.Select Latest Production Image:

- You will be prompted to select the image you wish to install. Choose "Latest released production image (EFI)".

version: 20220714 Select which image you	want to install
noduction master-eri 5.10-efi 5.11-efi 5.12-efi other	Latest released production image (EFI) Release master for image Release 5.10 EFI image Release 5.11 EFI image Release 5.12 EFI image Other image, provide own location/URL
	< OK > <cancel></cancel>

7.Select Installation Disk:

- Follow the on-screen instructions to select your local HDD as the installation disk **(usually/dev/sda)**



visit

WARNING:

This process will erase all data on your laptop's HDD.

8.Confirm your choice for the destination once more:

Disk [/dev/sdb] chosen.
Continuing will wipe the complete contents of this disk:
Disk /deu/sdb: 20 GiB, 21474836480 bytes, 41943040 sectors Units: sectors of 1 * 512 = 512 bytes Sector size (logical/physical): 512 bytes / 512 bytes I/O size (minimum/optimal): 512 bytes / 512 bytes Disklabel type: dos Disk identifier: 0x00077221
Device Boot Start End Sectors Size Id Type /dev/sdb1 2048 194559 192512 94M b W95 FAT32 /dev/sdb2 * 194560 7546879 7352320 3.5G 83 Linux
Continue?
✓ Yes > < No >

9.Confirm and the process will start:

0:00:13 [5.97MiB/s] [>] 2% ETA 0:07:54

10.Complete Installation:

- Once the installation process finishes, you will be asked if you want to reboot. Select "Yes" to reboot the laptop.

Disk copy completed Reboot?		
	< Yes >	< No >

11.Start Check-In Software:

- After rebooting, the laptop will start the Check-In software automatically. You can now safely remove the USB stick.

12.License Activation

- Enter the Check-In license code when prompted to activate the software. (check section 2.2.3 Software Activation)
- You can now start using the software.



Licence Code e-xxxxxx-xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	

Option 2: Install Check-In software from USB

- Before starting the installation, ensure you have prepared two USB sticks as follows:

1.Prepare USB Sticks:

- Add the Check-In Loader image to one USB stick.
- Add the Check-In image to the second USB stick.

2. Power Off Your Laptop:

- Ensure your laptop is switched off before proceeding.

3.Boot from USB Loader Stick:

- Insert the USB stick with the Check-In Loader image into your laptop.
- Start your laptop and access the boot menu. This varies depending on your machine (common keys include F12, F8, F2, or Del).
- Select the **USB loader stick** as the boot device to run the loader software.

4.Insert Check-In Image USB:

- Once the loader software is running, insert the second USB stick containing the Check-In image.



5.Copy Check-In Image from USB:

- Select the option to copy the Check-In image from USB. Do not remove the loader USB stick.

	Checkin londer, version 20220714
	Checkin image copy from USB
	Vipe a disk Local operating system in harddrive (if available) Newory test using Newtest86+
	Press [Tab] to edit options
opy	y the checkin image from the development server to USb stick or hardd

- When prompted, select the USB stick with the Check-In image. **If unsure, choose the one with less available GB.**
- Refresh the list of disks by selecting 'Refresh'

Select the USB stick to copy the image from	
/dev/sdbDisk /dev/sdb: 20 GiB, 21474836480 bytes, 41943040 sectorRefreshRefresh the list of disks	s

- Select the USB stick with the Check-In Image on it . If unsure, choose the one with less available GB.



6.Select Installation Disk:

- Follow the on-screen instructions to select your local HDD as the installation disk (usually/dev/sda)



WARNING:

This process will erase all data on your laptop's HDD.

7.Confirm your choice for the destination once more:



8.Confirm and the process will start:



9.Complete Installation:

- Once the installation process finishes, you will be asked if you want to reboot. Select "Yes" to reboot the laptop.

visit Y

Disk copy completed Reboot?	
K Yes >	< No >

10.Start Check-In Software:

- After rebooting, the laptop will start the Check-In software automatically. You can now safely remove the USB stick.

11.License Activation

- Enter the Check-In license code when prompted to activate the software. (check section 2.2.3 Software Activation)
- You can now start using the software.

Lizzera Crota
e-r0000-r0000
Version: 5.12.37 - Boot Device: Harddisk Ok

12.Repeat Process for Additional Laptops:

- If installing the software on multiple laptops, repeat the above steps for each laptop/computer.

2.2.2 Update Existing Installation

- Once a software update becomes available, Check-In displays an Update icon in the system tray.

*		
		A new update is available, do you want to update?
	Licence Code	
	Version: 5.12.37 - Boot Device: Harddisk	

- Install updates as soon as you can, as they may include vital fixes and improvements that will ensure the smooth running of your event.
- Please ensure that the Check-In terminal is connected to internet.

Option 1: updating to a higher version :Updating Check-In terminal software from (from 5.AA.XX > 5.AA.XZ)

- To update your current version to the latest version, please follow the steps below:

1.Check Internet Connection:

- Ensure that the Check-In terminal is connected to the internet. A stable internet connection is required to download and install the update.

2.Check for Updates:

- When a software update is available, Check-In will indicate it by displaying an Update icon in the system tray.

3.Install Update:

- Click on the Update icon.



Y		
		A new update is available, do you want to update?
	Licence Code	
	Version: 5.12.37 - Boot Device: Harddisk Ok	

- If prompted, enter the Check-In password. This password can be found in Visit Create > Onsite > Settings.
- When asked if you want to update Check-In, select "Yes". A message indicating that the update is in progress will appear.

Y	2 ◎ 🗗 ಚ 🖶 🖶 📼 🗢 🌒
Update available	
Licence Cr. Version: 5.12.37	
Version: 5.12.	
No	

- After a few minutes, the update will be completed, and you can resume using Check-In as usual.

4.Verify Functionality:

- Test the functionality of the updated software to ensure that all features are working correctly.



- Verify that any custom settings or configurations remain intact after the update.

Option 2: New installation

- Please check the instructions provided for a **New Installation** > **section 2.2.1**

2.2.3 Software Activation

- Software activation is the process of validating your software license to activate and enable its full functionality.

Check-In License Activation Guide: Scanning QR Code

- Licenses are essential for utilizing dedicated Visit products such as Check-In.

Follow these steps to activate your Check-In license:

1.Access Licenses from Homepage:

- Log in to Visit Create and navigate to your event homepage.
- Select "Onsite" and then click on "Licenses".
- If your licence was previously created , please filter for 'Check-IN'

			~			1 record i	matches your search criteria Actions
Design Form	> >	Type 🗢	V	Code ¢	Linked to \Rightarrow	Activation 0	Created by \Leftrightarrow
Onsite	~	Check-in	(e-cneph-Imjsh-tbwka 🜔	Visit Create	0 of 1	Visit Create: Flavi Oprea
Settings							
Visit Check-in Terminals							
Uisit Check-in Lite Device	es						
Cameras							
💷 Partner Scanners							
Licences							
♀ Alerts		MA466					
Basic Intelligence	>	Cr	neck-in	CODE: e-cneph-Imjst	i-tbwka 🜔		;

- If not, please create one by clicking on 'Actions' > 'Add licence'
- Make sure the licence type is set to Check-In, select the event and set as well the 'Max activation count'

Q Quick search				0 record	s match your search criteria 🛛 🖌 🖌
	Туре 😄	Licence		Activation ¢	Created by ©
		Licence type Check-in	~		
		Generate a new Visit Check-in licer event(s).	nce for the selected		
		Event(s) Visit Create X	+		
		Max. activation count * 1			
			Cancel Save		

2.Turn On Check-In Terminal:

- Ensure that the Check-In computer is powered on and ready for use.



3.Activate License:

- This key may be in the form of a code (e.g., e-xxxxx-xxxxx) or a QR code.
- Activate the license by scanning the QR code with a compatible scanner attached to the Check-In computer.

(If a scanner is not available, you can enter the code manually.)



4.Confirmation:

- Once the QR code is scanned the license activation process will be initiated.



5.Verification:

- Verify that the Check-In software now reflects the activated license and is ready for use.



Check-In License Activation: Manual Code Entry

To activate your Check-In license, follow these steps:

1.Access Licenses from Homepage:

- Log in to Visit Create and navigate to your event homepage.
- Select "Onsite" and then click on "Licenses".
- If your licence was previously created , please filter for 'Check-IN'

Q Quick search						1 record	matches your search criteria Actions 🗸
Design							
Form		Type 🔅	×	Code ¢	Linked to \protect	Activation a	Created by \protect
Onsite	0	Check-in		e-cneph-Imjsh-tbwka	Visit Create	0 of 1	Visit Create: Flavi Oprea
Settings							
Visit Check-in Terminals							
Uisit Check-in Lite Device:							
Cameras							
[III] Partner Scanners							
🛱 Licences							
₽ Alerts		56 M					
Basic Intelligence		Ch	eck-in	CODE: e-cneph-lmjsh-	tbwka (D		×

- If not, please create one by clicking on 'Actions' > 'Add licence'
- Make sure the licence type is set to Check-In, select the event and set as well the 'Max activation count'

Q Quick search	0 records match your search criteria 🛛 Actions 🗸
Design >	Reset table filters
Form >	Licence Activation © Created by ©
© Settings	Laurce type Check-in V
Visit Check-in Terminals	Generate a new Visit Check-in licence for the selected event(s).
Visit Check-in Lite Devices	Evental + Visit Create X
Content management Cameras	Max activation coult* 1
🗐 Partner Scanners	Cancel Sove
 Licences Alerts 	

2.Turn On Check-In Computer:

- Ensure that the Check-In computer is powered on and ready for use.

3.Activate License:

- Activate the license by entering the code manually.



Y	2 @ ∂ # 6 = 0 □ ●
Licence Code e-x0000x-x0000x	
Version: 5.12.37 - Boot Device: Harddisk Ok	

4.Confirmation:

3. Once the key is entered press 'OK' and the license activation process will be initiated.



5.Verification:

4. Verify that the Check-In software now reflects the activated license and is ready for use.



2.3 Hardware Compatibility

- Our software is designed to work harmoniously with a selection of printers and scanners, providing users with a streamlined experience.

List of Compatible Printers:

1.Zebra LP 2844

Housing: White Type: Thermal label printer Support Discontinued: October 31, 2015. Use EPL2 driver.

2.Zebra GC 420D

Housing: White Type: Thermal label printer

3.Zebra GK 420D

Housing: Black Type: Thermal label printer

4.Zebra ZD 421D

Housing: Black Type: Thermal label printer Note: Latest model.

5.Zebra ZD 410

Type: Industrial Mid-range Functionality: Thermal and direct thermal printer Note: Use EPL2 driver.

6.Zebra ZD 621

Housing: Black Type: Thermal label printer

7.Zebra GX420D

Housing: Black Type: Thermal and direct thermal printer

8.Epson TM-C3500/C3510/C3520 (depending on the region)

Type: Color Inkjet label printer Functionality: Auto cut function

If you have any questions or need further assistance regarding hardware compatibility, please feel free to reach out to support.



List of Compatible Scanners:

1.Opticon L-46X Type: Wired handheld

2.Opticon M-10 Type: Wired tabletop

3.Opticon M-11 Type: Wired tabletop

4.Opticon OPI-3301i Type: Wireless handheld

5.Zebra DS2208 Barcode Scanner Type: Wireless handheld

6.Motorola DS4208 Barcode Scanner

Type: Wired handheld

- Please ensure that the chosen scanner meets your specific requirements and preferences.

3. Hardware configuration

- Configuring the hardware for Check-In terminal/device involves setting up the necessary devices and equipment to ensure the smooth operation of the Check-In software.

This process typically includes:

Check-In Terminal/Device: Set up the Check-In terminal device, which could be a computer or laptop equipped with the Check-In software. Ensure that the terminal is properly connected to power and network resources.

Printers: Configure compatible printers to facilitate the printing of badges, tickets, or other necessary documents.

Scanners: If barcode or QR code scanning is required for Check-In, configure compatible scanners. Ensure that the scanners are properly connected to the Check-In terminal and configured for accurate scanning.

Network Configuration: Establish a stable network connection for the Check-In terminal to ensure seamless communication with other devices and access to online resources. This may involve connecting to a Wi-Fi network or using a wired Ethernet connection.



Additional Hardware: Depending on specific requirements, additional hardware such as payment terminals may need to be configured and integrated with the Check-In system.

3.1 Configuring Printers

- Configuring printers for Check-In involves setting up the printing devices to ensure seamless badge printing.

1. Zebra Thermal Printer:

Connection and Setup:

- Connect the Zebra Thermal printer to your computer using a USB cable or ensure it is connected to the network if using Ethernet.
- Make sure you Check-In terminal is connected to the Internet.

Follow these steps to configure a printer for Check-In:

1.Add Printer:

- Select the 'Printer' connection icon on your computer.

¥		C @ D & ⊖ = = = •
	Licence Code Version: 5.12.37 - Boot Device: Horddisk	

3.Enter Check-In Password:

- Enter the Check-In password if prompted. This password will be provided by your POC.



4.Add Printer:

- Click on "Add". (+ button)

Printer Settings		
	Add Printer	
C	Printer type Yebra	
	Network Name Set as default printer	
0	Cancel Add	
		Close

5.Select Printer Type:

- Choose the printer type from the dropdown list.

If you select Network Printer:

 \circ $\,$ Enter the IP address of the printer.

Printer Settings		
C	Add Printer Printer type Zebra Connection type Connection type IP Name Set as default printer	
0 8	Cancel Add	
		Close

visitY

If you select USB Printer:

- Connect the printer cable to the computer.
- Turn on the printer.
- Select a value from the Connections dropdown list.
- Amend the name if required.

Printer Settings	Add Printer	
	Printer type Zebra Connection type USB Network Nome Set as default printer	
•	Cancel	
		Close

6.Set Default Printer (Optional):

- If you want to use this printer as the default printer, select the "Default printer" checkbox.

7.Add Printer:

- Click "Add". The printer will appear on the printer list.

8. Click 'Calibrate' button to calibrate your printer.

Printer Settings	
zebra ● idle 127.0.0.1	Zebra Zebro_ZPL_Label_Printer
	Name Zebra
	Connection 127.0.0.1
	Calibrate
	Set as default printer Save
0	

visit

9.Check Printer Connection:

- Verify that the printer connection appears correctly. If it does not, delete any printer connections and try again.

Even if a printer connection is detected, it's important to verify that it is the intended printer for use with Check-In.

Check or Change Printer Connection:

• Select the Printer Connection icon on your Check-In interface.

Y		≈ ® 뜖 ᅙ ☴ ▣ □ ●
	Licence Code Version: 5.12.37 - Boot Device: Harddisk Ok	

- Enter Check-In Password:
- Enter the Check-In password if prompted. This password will be provided by your POC.
- Select Printer and View Properties:
- From the list of connected printers, select the desired printer to view its properties.
- Optionally, you can make changes such as renaming the printer or setting it as the default printer.
- Apply Changes:
- After making any necessary adjustments, select "Apply" to save the changes. Alternatively, choose "Close" to exit without saving changes.



2. Epson Color Printer C3500/3510/3520

Connection and Setup:

- Connect the Epson Color printer to your computer using a USB cable or ensure it is connected to the network if using Ethernet or Wi-Fi.

Configuring the Printer as a Network Printer:

- Connect the printer to the network using a UTP cable.
- Ensure that paper is loaded into the printer.

• Locate the 'secret' small button (positioned between the USB and UTP sockets on the rear back of the printer) > status sheet button



- Press and hold this button for 3 seconds.
- A printout detailing the currently assigned network settings will be generated on badge paper.



• Utilize the printed IP address when setting up this printer from a Check-In terminal.



Configuration for Fanfold Paper from a Windows PC (simple alternative)

Before configuring fanfold paper, ensure you have downloaded and installed the required software:

1.Download and Install Software:

- From your connected (USB/LAN) Windows PC, **download and install the following software:**
- Epson Printer Driver > <u>https://download.epson-</u> biz.com/modules/colorworks/index.php?page=single_soft&cid=467&pc at=34&pid=160

No need to connect printer to computer, will be automatically done later by the Epson Monitoring Tool.

> Epson Monitoring Tool > <u>https://download.epson-</u> biz.com/modules/colorworks/index.php?page=single_soft&cid=479&pc at=34&pid=160

2.Accept Firewall Exception:

- During installation, you may encounter a prompt to make an exception to the Windows Firewall. Select "YES" to proceed.

Epson Monitoring Tool - InstallShield Wizard License Agreement Please read the following license agreement carefully.	×
Epson Monitoring Tool - InstallShield Wizard To use this utility, need be registered in the Windo exceptions. Would you like to create an exception in Windows If not registered in the Windows Firewall exception work correctly this utility.	Firewall?
Yes O I do not accept the terms of the license agreement	No nt
InstallShield	Next > Cancel

3. After Installation:



- Once the installation is complete:
- Start the Epson Monitoring Tool.
- From the list of detected printers, select the desired printer.
- Click the 'Change Printer Settings' button.

ison Monitoring View Tool H						- 🗆
Monit	toring Tool		2785-T	2		
Refresh					() Show Status details	Change Printer S
lodel Name	IP Address	MAC Address	Location	Administrator Name	Status	
M-C3500	10.224.116.24	38:1A:52:72:7C:F6	5		Ready to print.	

4.Execute Printer Settings:

- A popup will appear. Click 'Execute' to open the 'TM-C3500 Printer Setting dialog.

	Epson Monitoring						- 🗆 ×
File	View Tool He						
	Monit	oring Tool		2 Carlos			
	Refresh					() Show Status details	Change Printer Setting
	Model Name	IP Address	MAC Address	Location	Administrator Name	Status	
8	TM-C3500	10.224.116.24	20.44.53.73.70.50			Press inm.	
			TM-C3500 (10.224	.116.24)		×	
			Network Setting				
			Network Setting				
				Basic Netwo	rk Setting		
				Launch Web	.		
				Launch Web	browser		
			Printer Setting				
			TM-C3500Ver	2PrinterSetting	✓ Execute		
						×.	
				Multiple Prin	ter Setup		
					Close		
						_	

5.General-Media Settings:

- Set the Media source to: Fanfold paper.
- Set Media detection settings to: Die-Cut label (Gap)

W TM-C3500 PrinterSetting Version 2.1	0.0	-		×
▼ General				
Media Settings	Media source settings			
Printer Operation Settings	* Before changing the setting, remove the paper and close the roll paper cover. * To change the setting, apply the setting and then turn the printer off and then back on.			
► Advanced Settings	Media source:			
	Fanfold paper			
► Printer Adjustment				
Settings Save and Restore Option	JEC .			
	Media detection settings			
	Media detection settings:			
	Die-cut label (Gap)			
		J		
Model Name: TM-C3 Port: 10.224.116.24	00 Serial Number: U24F046237 Appl Satings	•	?	

6.Printer Operations Settings:

- Configure the Nozzle Check Mode and Paper loading settings.

W TM-C3500 PrinterSetting Version 2.1.0.0			- X
▼ General			
Media Settings	Check Mode Settings		
Printer Operation Settings			
	No missing dot detection mode	~	51
► Advanced Settings			-
► Printer Adjustment	Loading Settings		
Settings Save and Restore	Paper loading at Power-on:		
Option	No paper feed for positioning	\sim	
	Paper loading at roll paper cover close:		
	No paper feed for positioning	~	
Model Name: TM-C3500	Serial Number: U24F046237		
Port: 10.224.116.24	Firmware Version: WAM31500	Apply Settings	?

visit

7.Advanced Settings-Notifications settings:

- Configure notifications settings.

:	Epson	😡 TM-C35	00 PrinterSetting Version 2.	1.0.0				××
File	View	▶ Genera						
	1		ed Settings	Notification	Settings Beep Notification Setting at an Error:			
	-		ation Settings	1))	No Beep	~		
	Ref	Panel B	utton Settings		LED Notification Setting at Ink Low:			er Setting
	Model		ing Time Settings	1	LED On	~		
8	тм-сз	► Printer	Adjustment		Notification Setting at a Media Size Error:			
		Setting	s Save and Restore	- D.	Notify an Error	~		
		Option						
				U				
		1	Model Name: TM-C		Serial Number: U24F046237	Apply Settings	2	
			Port: 10.224.116.24	4	Firmware Version: WAM31500		•	
		I						

8. Advanced Settings-Panel settings:

- Configure the Panel button settings.

📢 TM-C3500 I	PrinterSetting Version 2	.1.0.0		-	\times
▶ General					
Advanced	Settings	Panel Butte	on Settings		
Notificatio	on Settings	(L)	Enable/Disable the Feed Button:		
Panel Butt	ton Settings		Enable		
	Time Settings	8	Enable/Disable the Cut Button:		
► Printer Ad	-		Enable		
	ave and Restore	(A+A)	Enable/Disable the Cleaning Button:		
-	ave and Restore	JANK .	Enable (Disabled During Printing)		
Option					
	Model Name: TM-C3500		Serial Number: U24F046237		
	Port: 10.224.116.24		Firmware Version: WAM31500	?	



9. Advanced Settings-Operating time settings:

- Configure the operating time settings.



10.Printer Adjustment-Paper feed adjustment:

- Configure paper feed adjustment settings to '0' (zero)

📢 TM-C350	00 PrinterSetting Version 2.1	.0.0				-		×	×
▶ General									
► Advance	ed Settings	Paper Feed Adjustment							
• Printer /	Adjustment	Ľ×≣	Cut Position Adjustment:	Start adjustment					
Paper Fe	eed Adjustment								er Setting
Sensor A	Adjustment		Print Start Position Adjustment (Vertical Direction):	Start adjustment					
Print He	ad Alignment	_							
Settings	Save and Restore	A	Print Start Position Adjustment (Horizontal Direction):	Start adjustment					
Option									
		\square)					
	Model Name: TM-C3500 Port: 10.224.116.24		Serial Number: U24F046237		2				
			Firmware version: WAM31500	Firmware Version: WAM31500					


11.Settings Save and Restore:

- Save your settings or restore them.

🗾 Epsor	n 🔍 TM-C35	00 PrinterSetting Version 2	2.1.0.0			-	×	×
	 ▶ General ▶ Advance ▶ Printer Setting Option 	00 PrinterSetting Version 2 I sed Settings Adjustment s Save and Restore	Current Settings: Item Media source: Media detection settin. Nozzle Check Mode: Paper loading at Pow., Paper loading at roll p.	No missing dot detect No paper feed for po No paper feed for po		_	×	er Setting
			Beep Notification Setti. LED Notification Setti. Notification Setting at. Enable/Disable the Fe. Enable/Disable the Cu. Enable/Disable the Cl. Platen Vacuum Opera. Data Standby Time: Cut Position Adjustme. Print Start Position Ad. Print Start Position Ad.	. LED On Notify an Error Enable Enable (Disabled Duri Default (0.5 sec) 3 sec 0 0)		
	5	Model Name: TM-C Port: 10.224.116.2	3500 Serial Nu	imber: U24F046237 e Version: WAM31500	Restore settings.	 2		

Follow these steps to configure fanfold paper settings for your Epson printer from a Windows PC. If you encounter any issues during the setup process, feel free to seek further assistance.

Follow these steps to configure Epson C3500 printer for Check-In:

1.Add Printer:

- Select the 'Printer' connection icon on your computer.

Y		ି ଛ 🗗 ଝି ବି 🖬 📼 🗢 🌒
	Licence Code	
	Version: 5.12.37 - Boot Device: Harddisk Ok	

visit **Y**

3.Enter Check-In Password:

- Enter the Check-In password if prompted. This password will be provided by your POC.

4.Add Printer:

- Click on "Add". ('+' button)
- Choose the printer type from the dropdown list.

Printer Settings		
	Add Printer	
QO	Cancel Add	
		Close

If you select Network Printer:

- Enter the IP address of the printer.
- Select the Make and Model from the dropdown lists and enter a name for the printer.

Printer Settings		
	Add Printer	
00	Cancel Add	
		Close

visit

If you select USB Printer:

- Connect the printer cable to the computer.
- Turn on the printer.
- Select a Make and Model from the dropdown lists.
- Amend the name if required.

6.Set Default Printer (Optional):

- If you want to use this printer as the default printer, select the "Default printer" checkbox.

7.Add Printer:

- Click "Add". The printer will appear on the printer list.

8. Check Printer Connection:

- Verify that the printer connection appears correctly. If it does not, delete any printer connections and try again.



3.2 Configuring Scanners for Check-In

- Configuring scanners for Check-In involves ensuring that they are properly connected and configured for accurate scanning.

Follow these steps to set up your scanners:

1.Connect Scanner to Check-In Terminal:

- Ensure that the scanner is securely connected to the Check-In terminal via USB or another compatible connection method.

2.Configure Scanner :

- Please check the configuration guide for your scanner

3.Test Scanner:

- Open the Check-In software
- Test the scanner by scanning a sample barcode or QR code to ensure that it is functioning correctly.

4.Train Staff (if necessary):

- If Check-In staff will be using the scanners, provide training on how to operate them effectively and troubleshoot any potential issues.

By following these steps, you can ensure that your scanners are properly configured and ready for use during Check-In, facilitating a smooth and efficient Check-In process for your event attendees.



Configuration Guide: Opticon L-46X Scanner

Follow these steps to configure the Opticon L-46X scanner for use with your Check-In software:

1.Connect the Scanner:

- Connect the scanner to your computer using a USB cable or another compatible connection method.

2.Configure Scanner Settings:

- Use the following configuration :
- Step 1: Scan the following



- Step 2: Set the scanner to LCD priority mode



3.Test the Scanner:



Configuration Guide: Opticon M-10 Scanner

Follow these steps to configure the Opticon M-10 scanner for use with your Check-In software:

1.Connect the Scanner:

- Connect the scanner to your computer using a USB cable or another compatible connection method.

2.Configure Scanner Settings:

- Use the following configuration :
- Step 1: Scan the following



- Step 2: Set the scanner to LCD priority mode



3.Test the Scanner:



Configuration Guide: Opticon M-11 Scanner

Follow these steps to configure the Opticon M-11 scanner for use with your Check-In software:

1.Connect the Scanner:

- Connect the scanner to your computer using a USB cable or another compatible connection method.

2.Configure Scanner Settings:

- Use the following configuration :
- Step 1: Scan the following



- Step 2: Set the scanner to LCD priority mode



3.Test the Scanner:



Configuration Guide: Opticon OPI-3301i Scanner

Follow these steps to configure the Opticon OPI-3301i scanner for use with your Check-In software:

1.Connect the Scanner:

- Connect the scanner to your computer using a USB cable or another compatible connection method.

2.Configure Scanner Settings:

- Use the following configuration :
 - Scan the following codes in this order



2. Default Bluetooth SPP



3. USB-VCP (No Handshake)

4. End config



5. Scan the following code (USB COM interface)



Power the Cradle with the power adapterNow pair the scanner to the cradle by scanning the code on the bottom of the cradle.Make sure the scanner is connected to the cradle (blue light is on and is not blinking anymore) before connecting the USB cable to the eventbox.

	Scan all barcodes from top to bottom
SET (ZZ)	
AD00 Auto Disconnect Disabled	
END (ZZ)	

3.Test the Scanner:



Configuration Guide: Zebra DS2208 Scanner

Follow these steps to configure the Zebra DS2208 scanner for use with your Check-In terminal/device:

1.Connect the Scanner:

- Connect the scanner to your computer using a USB cable or another compatible connection method.

2.Configure Scanner Settings:

- Use the following configuration :
- Reset the scanner by holding the scan button and then connect the USB cable
- Then scan the following



SSI over USB CDC

3.Test the Scanner:

- Open a document or barcode sample and test the scanner by scanning various barcodes. Ensure that the scanner reads the barcodes accurately and consistently.

visitY

Configuration Guide: Motorola DS4208 Scanner

Follow these steps to configure the Motorla DS4208 scanner for use with your Check-In terminal/device:

1.Connect the Scanner:

- Connect the scanner to your computer using a USB cable or another compatible connection method.

2.Configure Scanner Settings:

- Use the following configuration :
- Reset the scanner



Set Factory Defaults

- Set to USB CDC Host



USB CDC Host

3.Test the Scanner:



3.3 Configuring Network for Check-In Terminal

- Setting up the network connection for your Check-In terminal is essential for ensuring seamless operation.

Follow these steps to configure the network settings:

Connecting to a Network:

- Select the Network icon on your Check-In interface.

Ŷ		∞ ⊗ ⊡ * ⊖ = • ●
	Licence Code Version: 5.12.37 - Boot Device: Horddisk Ok	

Ethernet Connection:

- Connect one end of an Ethernet cable to the Ethernet port on the Check-In terminal.
- Connect the other end of the Ethernet cable to an available Ethernet port on your router or network switch.

Wi-Fi Connection:

- Access the Wi-Fi settings menu on the Check-In terminal.
- Select your Wi-Fi network from the list of available networks.
- Enter the Wi-Fi network password (if required) to establish the connection.



Network Settings	
eth0 Connected 10.224.116.28 wlan0 Disconnected	ethO Connected (Ethernet) 10.224.116.28
Disconnected	Auto V IP Address 10.224.116.28 Subnet Mask 255.255.0
	Roter 10.224,116.1 DNS Server 10.151,40.202 Apply
	Close Internet access Open browser

Internet Connectivity:

Test Connection:

- Once the network connection is established, open a web browser on the Check-In terminal.
- To check internet connectivity:
- Select the Connected internet connection.
- Select Internet access. A success message appears if the connection is working.
- open Broswer on the Check-In terminal.
- Select Close to exit the Network settings screen.

eth0 Connected 10.224.116.28	eth0 Connected (Ethernet)
Sisconnected	10.224.116.28 Configure IPv4 Auto
	1P Address 10.224,116.28
	Subnet Mask 255.255.255.0
	Router 10.224.116.1
	DNS Server 10.151.40.202
	Apply

visit

Check Signal Strength (Wi-Fi only):

If using a Wi-Fi connection, ensure that the signal strength is strong enough for reliable internet access.

Following these steps will help you configure the network settings for your Check-In terminal, ensuring reliable internet connectivity for your Check-In operations. If you encounter any issues, refer to the troubleshooting steps or seek assistance from your network administrator.

Network Troubleshooting:

Check Cable Connections:

- Ensure that Ethernet cables are securely connected to both the Check-In terminal and the network device (router or switch).
- Restart Check-In Terminal:
- Restart the Check-In terminal to refresh network settings and resolve any connectivity issues.
- Verify Router Settings: Check the settings on your router or network device to ensure that it is properly configured to provide internet access to connected devices.
- Contact Network Administrator:

If troubleshooting steps do not resolve the issue, contact your network administrator or IT support for further assistance.

4.Check-In Lite Installation

- Check-in Lite enables organisers to deliver advanced access control solutions at events, powered by their own devices. Attendees may be scanned in to or out of entrances at all kinds of events and venues, also at defined sub-locations such as presentation rooms and theaters.
- The functionality is equivalent to using our full suite of onsite tools (Visit Checkin) so users benefit from comprehensive access control rules to restrict access to attendees meeting certain criteria only.

4.1 Installation requirements for using Check-In LITE software

- Before installing and using Visit Check-In Lite software, ensure that your system meets the following minimum requirements.



4.1.1 Minimum Requirements:

- To utilize Check-In Lite, there are specific minimum **operating system** requirements:

- Windows, macOS or Linux
 - o Google Chrome 110
 - Microsoft Edge 110
 - o Mozilla Firefox 110
 - o Apple Safari 13

• Android

- o Google Chrome 110
- o Mozilla Firefox 110
- iOS
 - o Apple Safari 13

- Check-in Lite will require permission to access the device's camera.

4.1.2 Required information from client manager (Your POC)

- For succesful delivery of the Visit Check-In Lite software for your event, you need the following essential information:
- 1. Number of Check-In Lite Devices required based on venue dimensions.
- 2. Licence for Check-In Lite
- You'll need a licence to activate/launch the software (QR code or URL)
- 3. Network Connectivity Availability at Check-In Locations:
- Ensure that each Check-In Lite device is within range of the event venue's network infrastructure to ensure seamless connectivity.

4.2 Installation Steps

- Before starting the proper installation of our software, please ensure the following:
- You will require one or more Check-In Lite licenses for your event:

 Each license will be restricted to a limited number of activations only. It's also possible to receive multiple licenses (with associated activation quantities) for the same event.

- Check section 2.2.3 Software Activation



- 2. Permission to access the device's camera
- Stable Internet Connection

 For the initial launch of the software please make sure you device is connected to Internet.

4.2.1 Launching Check-in Lite

To launch on your mobile device, do one of the following:

- Scan the license QR code using the device's camera. Your phone or tablet should open the associated URL (you will need to be online).
- **Open the license URL** directly on the device. The URL may be in an email you have received.

TIP:

- Most smartphones will automatically open the Check-in Lite app when you scan the QR code with their camera.

- However, for some devices (like the Zebra TC26 DataWedge scanner), an additional step may be needed. *In such cases, you can either use a QR & Barcode scanning app to scan the QR code or take a photo of the licence QR and use Google Lens to open its associated URL.*

4.2.2 Registering your device

- On first launch, enter your device name for identification. Centrally this helps event organisers keep track of licence usage.





4.2.3 Device Settings

- After registering you will be prompted to set the gate location, scanner mode.

Settings	
You can create and manag locations in the Onsite Sett Create.	-
Gate Location	~
Scanner mode Use the camera	~
Beep on scan	
Vibrate on scan	
	Close

You will need to have gate(s) defined to continue.

Gate Location: select one of the locations defined for your event. The event organiser will advise on the correct gate to use.

Scanner mode: select *Use the camera* if using on a phone or tablet. Select *Use keyboard input* if using a device requiring keyboard emulation, such as Zebra TC26.

Beep on Scan: you device will beep on each code scan (if supported).

Vibrate on Scan: Your device will vibrate on scanning (if supported).

4.2.4 Using Check-in Lite

- Use the Scan button to activate the camera and scan a QR code. Attendees may present their QR codes as printed badges, documents or onscreen in the Visit Discover or Visit Connect applications.



No scans made yet
/
**

If connected to wi-fi / mobile data

- The system will retrieve the full name of the visitor if the QR code is valid for the event active.

- If access control rules are in use, the screen will show if the attendee has permission to pass through the associated gate.



If offline

- Part of the name will be shown on screen, the full name will be displayed when connected later. While the scan (and associated time of day) is captured, access control rules are not processed. Where access control is a requirement, it's critical to use the software online.





Gate location may be changed at any time from the Settings menu. See below:





- Ensure you device is showing the **correct time of day**. If traveling to events, be sure to select the correct timezone.



- Before updating your device, or (for example) resetting your browser history, please ensure that any captured scans have been synchronised. To do this, open Check-in Lite while online (connected to internet)

4.3 Hardware Compatibility

- Check-in Lite is supported by nearly all mobile devices, including phones and tablets.

Our recommendation is to use:

Zebra TC26 DataWedge scanner

4.4. Zebra TC26 DataWedge scanner configuration

- You can use Checkin Lite on the Zebra TC26 DataWedge scanner as with any regular Android smartphone, by using the camera to scan codes on the badges, or you can enable its built-in scanner and scan badges by pressing any of the two side-buttons.





 To enable the optical scanner use instead of the camera, go to Settings > Scanner mode in the Check-in Lite menu of the scanner, and select Use keyboard input

:	Settings	
	You can create and manage gate locations in the Onsite Settings of Visit Create.	
	Gate Location V	
	Scanner mode Use keyboard input (e.g. Zebra 🗡)
	Beep on scan	
	Vibrate on scan	
	Close	

Mandatory scanner settings

- To have an optimal experience while using Check-in Lite with the Zebra TC26 DataWedge scanner, you must ensure that the following settings are enabled from the zConfigure file of your scanner:
- 1. Go to DataWedge Profiles
- 2. Select the profile you will be using (either the default one or add a new profile) and check the *Profile enabled* box.

Scroll down until you get to the Keystroke output menu, then select:

- Action key character
- 1. Select "Action key character".
- 2. Select "Carriage return".
- Key event options
- 1. Select "Key event options".
- 2. Make sure "Send Characters as Events" is checked.
- Basic data formatting
- 1. Select "Basic data formatting".



56

- 2. Make sure "Enable", "Send data" and "Send ENTER key" are checked.
- Disable audio feedback and use Check-in Lite sound feedback (optional)
- In the same Profile menu as above, go to Barcode input > Configure scanner settings
- 1. Select "Configure scanner settings".
- 2. Select "Scan params".
- 3. Select "Decode Audio Feedback".
- 4. Select "None" (Geen).

5.Event Day Setup

- On the day of the event, it's crucial to ensure that all equipment and systems are functioning properly.

Here's a checklist of items to verify:

1.Power up devices:

- Ensure all devices, including computers, printers, scanners, and any other necessary equipment, are powered up and functioning.

2.Check-In Terminal/Computer(s) status:

- Check the status of all computers to ensure they are operational and ready for use.



3.Printer(s) status:

- Verify the status of all printers to ensure they are online and ready to print.

4.Network connection:

- Confirm that a stable network connection is established to enable communication between devices and access to online resources.

5.Keyboard configuration:

- Double-check the keyboard configuration to ensure it is set correctly for the event.

6.Test the scanners:



- Test all scanners to ensure they are functioning properly. For wireless scanners, ensure they are within 12 meters of their base station.

7. Printing from Check-In:

- Test printing functionality from the Check-In software to verify that it is working correctly.

8.Auto-print after Voucher scan:

- If auto-printing is enabled after scanning vouchers, test this functionality to ensure it is working as expected.

9. Printing after scanning barcode or QR code:

 Test printing functionality after scanning barcodes to ensure seamless printing of badges or tickets.

10.Badge paper:

- Ensure an adequate supply of badge paper is available for printing badges or tickets.

11.Replacement ink cartridges:

- If printers are rented from Visit, ensure spare ink cartridges are available in case replacements are needed during the event.

12.Registration form:

- If forms are to be used, test the functionality to ensure attendees can register themselves smoothly.

By thoroughly checking these items before the event starts, you can ensure a seamless and successful Check-In process for all attendees.

6.Troubleshooting

- While operating the Check-In terminal, you may encounter some common issues that can affect the smooth flow of the Check-In process.

Here are the typical problems and their solutions:

1.Printer Jams:

Paper gets stuck or jams inside the printer, preventing it from printing badges or tickets.

Solution:

- Turn off the printer and carefully remove any jammed paper from the printer's paper path.



- Check for any torn pieces of paper or debris that may be causing the jam.
- Reload the paper tray with fresh badge paper, ensuring it is properly aligned and not overfilled.
- Restart the printer and test printing functionality to ensure the issue is resolved.

2.Badge Is Not Printing:

Solution:

- Check the printer status: Ensure that the printer is powered on, connected to the Check-In terminal, and has enough paper.
 - Verify printer settings: Ensure that the correct printer is selected in the Check-In software and that the printer settings are configured properly.
- Check for errors: Look for any error messages or alerts on the printer settings E.g: **Printer stuck in 'processing' mode. Remove and add the printer again.**
- Restart the printer: Try restarting the printer to reset any temporary issues or errors.
- Check connections: Ensure that the printer cable is securely connected to both the printer and the Check-In terminal.

3. Printing Blank Badges:

Solution:

- Check printer settings: Verify that the printer settings, including paper size and badge template are configured correctly in the Check-In software.
- Calibrate the printer
- Test print: Perform a test print from the Check-In terminal to verify that the printer is functioning properly.

4.Connectivity Issues:

Solution:

- Check the network cables and connections to ensure they are securely plugged in.
- Restart the Check-In terminal and any networking devices such as routers or switches.
- Verify that the network settings on the Check-In terminal are configured correctly, including IP address, subnet mask, and gateway settings.
- If using Wi-Fi, ensure that the signal strength is strong enough and consider repositioning the terminal closer to the Wi-Fi router.

5.Scanner Malfunctions:

Solution:

- Check the scanner's connection to the Check-In terminal and ensure it is securely plugged in.
- Unplug the scanner and plug it in.



- Configure the scanner according to the instructions to ensure accurate scanning.
- Test the scanner with different barcodes or QR codes to determine if the issue persists across multiple scans.

6. Database Error

Encountering a database error while using the Check-In terminal can disrupt the Check-In process.

Solution:

- Performing a new installation of the Check-In software will resolve database errors. Please consult section 2.2.1 (New Installation)

7. Check-In USB image copy error

(sudo /lib/live/mount/medium/live/checkin-copy-usb finised with error)



Solution:

- -Make sure you have admin rights and access to your USB
- -Create a new Check-In Loader on another USB stick
- -Create a new Check-In Image
- -Try again

7.Conclusion

This structured document outline provides a clear roadmap for users to follow while installing and configuring the "Visit by GES" Check-In software, ensuring a smooth setup process and effective troubleshooting steps if needed.

